
 

 

      Village of Mount Horeb 
 

138 E Main St 

Mount Horeb, WI 53572 

Phone (608) 437-6884/Fax (608) 437-3190 

                                                   Email: mhinfo@mounthorebwi.info   Website: www.mounthorebwi.info 

 

 
THE PLAN COMMISSION/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION WILL MEET IN A 
VIRTUAL MEETING. YOU CAN JOIN THE MEETING FROM YOUR COMPUTER, TABLET, OR 
SMARTPHONE AT https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/181080997, OR DIAL IN TO THE 
MEETING USING YOUR PHONE AT (224) 501-3412 ACCESS CODE 181-080-997. 

 
PLAN COMMISSION/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2020 
 

The Plan Commission/Historic Preservation Commission of the Village of Mount Horeb will 
meet in a virtual meeting at 7:00pm in the Board Room of the Municipal Building, 138 E 
Main Street, Mount Horeb, WI.  Agenda as follows: 
 
1) Call to order – Roll call 

 
2) Consider February 26, 2020 Plan Commission meeting minutes 
 
3) Consider recommendation for final plat of Sixth Addition To Kara View Heights 

 
4) Consider Village of Mount Horeb welcome sign 

 
5) Conceptual presentation of proposed Casey's convenience store 

 
6) Plan Commission Chair report  
 
7) Village Planner report 
 
8) Adjourn 

 
A QUORUM OF THE VILLAGE BOARD/VILLAGE COMMITTEE MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT AT THIS MEETING.  ONLY NOTICED 

AGENDA ITEMS WILL BE ACTED ON BY THE GOVERNMENTAL BODY SPECIFIED ABOVE. 
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT UPON REASONABLE NOTICE EFFORTS WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEEDS OF DISABLED 

INDIVIDUALS THROUGH APPROPRIATE AIDS OR SERVICES. TO REQUEST THIS SERVICE CONTACT ALYSSA GROSS, CLERK, AT 
(608) 437-9404. 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/181080997


 

1 

 

PLAN COMMISSION/HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2020 

The Plan Commission/Historic Preservation Commission met on the above date in the Board 

Room of the Municipal Building, 138 E. Main Street, Mount Horeb, WI.  Chair Randy Littel called 

the meeting to order at 7:00pm.  Present were Commissioners Destinee Udelhoven, Norb 

Scribner, Dave Hoffman, and Peggy Zalucha.  Brenda Monroe arrived at 7:04pm.  Brent Yauchler 

was absent.  Also present were Village Administrator Nic Owen, Assistant Village Administrator 

Kathy Hagen, Village Planner Mike Slavney, Village Engineer Rob Wright, Delaney Mertz from 

the Youth In Government program, and Deputy Clerk Chrissy Kahl.   

Consider January 22, 2020 Plan Commission meeting minutes:  Zalucha moved, Scribner 

seconded to approve the January 22, 2020 minutes.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  

AGENDA ITEMS 3, 4, 5 WERE MOVED FROM THE ORIGINAL ORDER 

Consider recommendation for preliminary plat of the Sixth Addition to Kara View Heights:  

Developer Brian Durtschi and Mike Rochon from Full Circle Engineering presented the 

preliminary plat.  Slavney advises a street right-of-way dedication in the area that will remain 

zoned as Ag on Manor Drive.  Scribner moved, Zalucha seconded to recommend approval of the 

preliminary plat to include the area that remains zoned as Ag to have a right-of-way dedication, 

be conditional on a temporary turnaround within outlot 3, and to include the Village Planner 

and Village Engineer’s comments.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

PUBLIC HEARING:  To consider application from Kara View LLC/Brian Durtschi for a zoning 

change from A-1 Agriculture to R-1 Single Family Residential and Conservancy for proposed 

Sixth Addition to Kara View Heights:  The public hearing opened at 7:29pm.  Slavney gave an 

overview.  Brian Durtschi clarified these are outlots 3 and 4.  The public hearing closed at 

7:30pm. 

Consider recommendation for Ordinance 2020-05, “AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING 

CLASSIFICATION FOR THE SIXTH ADDITION TO KARA VIEW HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURE TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL AND CONSERVANCY”:  Hoffman moved, 

Monroe seconded to recommend approval of Ordinance 2020-05.  Motion carried by 

unanimous voice vote. 

 

 



 

2 

 

Consider Sienna Hills Subdivision a) Specific Implementation Plan for Lot 2 b) Final Plat      

Phase 1:  Developer Rich Eberle was present and reviewed these items. 

a)  Specific Implementation Plan for Lot 2.  Slavney reviewed his report and 

recommendations.  Zalucha moved, Scribner seconded to find the proposed SIP and 

project design are fully consistent with the requirements of the zoning code except 

as waived by previous consensus items.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

b)  Final Plat Phase 1.  Wright reviewed his report.  Wade Wyse, from Wyser Engineering, 

had questions about the sidewalk recommended on the west side.  Hoffman moved, 

Scribner seconded to approve the Final Plat Phase 1.  Motion carried by unanimous voice 

vote. 

Consider Resolution 2020-04, “RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AMENDMENT TO THE 2005 

VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN” for Wyser 

Properties LLC:  Owner Wade Wyse presented.  The building he is proposing for his business 

would be 4800 square feet.  There were two public comments made.  John DeWitt of County ID, 

LLC was in opposition because this is a residential subdivision.  He had concerns about homes 

being built in the area and empty lots may be hard to sell.  He also feels there are other lots 

available in the TIF district to build on.  Mark Nortman, as representative of John DeWitt, was 

also in opposition as empty lots may be hard to sell with a commercial building nearby.  Monroe 

made a motion to table this item and then rescinded the motion to allow for more discussion.  

Monroe moved, Hoffman seconded to table this item.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.   

PUBLIC HEARING:  To consider application from Wyser Properties LLC for a zoning change for 

Lot 144 First Addition to Sutter’s Prairie Ridge Subdivision from R-2 Two Family Residential to 

PD-1 Planned Development:  The public hearing opened at 9:00pm.  No one spoke.  The public 

hearing closed at 9:01pm. 

Consider recommendation for Ordinance 2020-04, “AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING 

CLASSIFICATION OF SUTTER’S PRAIRIE RIDGE SUBDIVISION LOT 144 FROM R-2 TWO FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL TO PD-1 PLANNED DEVELOPMENT”:  Hoffman moved, Monroe seconded to table 

this item.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Consider 100-foot public notification area:  Monroe moved, Zalucha seconded to create an 

Ordinance notification area of 300-feet.  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Plan Commission Chair Report:  Littel gave the report including the Building Inspector’s report. 

Village Planner report:  Slavney gave the report. 



 

3 

 

Adjourn:  Monroe moved, Hoffman seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:13pm.  Motion 

carried by unanimous voice vote.   

Minutes by Chrissy Kahl, Deputy Clerk  



From: Robert Wright

To: cdi@chorus.net; Nic Owen; Kathy Hagen

Cc: Mike Slavney; Michael Rochon

Subject: RE: Updated Preliminary and Final Plats for Sixth Addition to Kara View Heights

Date: Monday, April 20, 2020 9:16:15 AM

Brian and Michael,

Thank you for the updated information.

We offer the following comments:
1. Stormwater management draft report

a. Appears to meet the intent of matching runoff rates
b. Verify that all grading for the Pond will fit on the platted Outlot 1 (see para. c.ii. below)
c. Will require full report and check lists etc.

i. Swale will need to be engineered to convey flow to Outlot 1
ii. Cross section of berm for detention basin with proper impervious liner (clay

or geotextile) berm width to allow for maintenance and design of broad
crested berm

d. Predevelopment Area names – match with Area Names in HydroCAD model in final
report –

i. Example: 5S KARA YARD node.  The Label KARA YARD appears twice in the
model Post Dev. Model nodes and is listed as KARA UNDISRURBED on the
W2 Post Development Map

e. We still will require a buffer strip along the back lot lines of 155 and 156 due to
numerous concerns raised by the adjacent property owners.

1. P-Plat
a. Buffer strip noted on the plat (covenant)
b. Notes relating to all impervious surface water and roof runoff to directed to Walter

Court for Lots 155 thru 157.
2. Final Plat

a. Buffer strip noted on the plat (covenant)
b. Notes relating to all impervious surface water and roof runoff to directed to Walter

Court for Lots 155 thru 157.
3. To Be completed:

a. Final Approved Engineering Drawings
b. Sewer and Water extension permits
c. WI DNR Review and Approval of SW and EC Plan
d. Developer’s Agreement
e. Any Fees for connections or recapture paid.

Having said this we would support the contingent approval of the P-Plat and Final Plat by the Village
with the previous items being completed prior to recording.

ROBERT WRIGHT
PE

mailto:Robert.Wright@smithgroup.com
mailto:cdi@chorus.net
mailto:Nic.Owen@mounthorebwi.info
mailto:Kathy.Hagen@mounthorebwi.info
mailto:mslavney@vandewalle.com
mailto:mrochon@fullcirclees.com






Matthews Satin-PMS 5405 (Cabinet)

Matthews Satin-to match 3M Translucent-RED
   (Columns/Ad Panels)

Matthews Satin-PMS 5425 (Cabinet graphic)

Matthews Satin-Black (Cabinet graphic)

Matthews Satin Metallic -Brushed Aluminum
   (Letter Backer/Returns/Accents)

**All ad panel graphics to be digitally printed per logo colors**

gS-1

 
 

 
S

I
G

N
A

G
E

 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I

O
N

S
:

g
S

-
1

 
 

 

DATE:2/14/2020  CUSTOMER: mount horeb    FILE: Mt Horeb/Civic sign/gs-1_monument_mhco_FINAL

S H E E T

c
By signing this approval you are hereby authorizing Sign Art Studio LLC to proceed with the work as described. Any deviation from these speci�cations will become the customer’s �nancial responsibility.
customer approval: landlord approval:date: date:

3 
ft 

- 
8 

in
24 ft - 0 in

10 in

2 
ft 

- 
10

 in

1 
ft 

- 
11

 7
/8

 in

Aluminum backer plate

3” Deep fabricated aluminum
channel letters. Red LED. 

Steel columns

Aluminum
trim

Fabricated aluminum
cabinet with two color

scroll graphics

Aluminum plates
with printed graphics

2” stand off

Cabinet

Ad panels

Steel columns
Stand offs

Channel letter

Letter backer

3 in

1 ft - 0 in

10 in

8 in

Illumination





M

EW

EW EW
EW

EW

EW

EW

EW

10' SETBAC
K

20' SETBACK

10' SETBAC
K

25' SETBACK

PROPOSED "U3"
CASEY'S BUILDING

39'-5" x 100'-6"

PROPOSED SINGLE
CARWASH BUILDING

28'-3" x 50'-7"

ENTRANCE

EXIT

PR
O

PO
SED

28'x20' BR
IC

K
D

U
M

PSTER
R

EC
YC

LE AR
EA

----

C-101
LND

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

CHECKED BY:DRAWN BY:

PROJECT LOCATION & OWNER: FOR CONSTRUCTION:

REVISIONS:

KG
PM:

RCS

LAYOUT PLAN
NW CORNER OF

LILLEHAMMER LN AND
SPRINGDALE ST

MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572

CASEY'S GENERAL STORE - MOUNT HOREB, WI

----
----
----
----
----

----
ISSUED FOR: ----

----
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----
---- ----

19136

7.
8.

6.
5.
4.
3.
2.
1.

6.
5.
4.
3.
2.
1.

PARKING TABLE
NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS REQUIRED 14 (1 - A.D.A.)

NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS PROPOSED 21 (1 - A.D.A.)

SITE AREA TABLE
IMPERVIOUS AREA 48,484 SF (1.11 AC)

TOTAL SITE AREA 69,159 SF (1.59 AC)

% IMPERVIOUS AREA 70.1%

LAYOUT NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS OF THE BENCHMARKS PRIOR TO

COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF EXISTING PIPE INVERTS, FLOOR ELEVATIONS, CURB OR PAVEMENT WHERE MATCHING INTO
EXISTING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL CONTROL BY
REFERENCING SHOWN COORDINATES TO KNOWN PROPERTY LINES.  NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCIES IN EITHER VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL CONTROL PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH
WORK.

2. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS.

3. DIMENSIONS THAT LOCATE THE BUILDING ARE MEASURED TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF THE
BUILDING.

4. SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, CURRENT EDITION.

5. COORDINATE WORK WITHIN EACH ROW WITH THE VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB, WI. TRAFFIC
CONTROL SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE STANDARDS FOR WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W.

6. ALL RADII ARE DIMENSIONED TO THE BACK OF CURB.

7. ALL CURB AND GUTTER IS INTEGRAL TO PAVEMENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  REFER TO THE
DETAIL SHEETS FOR CURB DETAILS.

8. SOME FIELD ADJUSTMENTS MAY BE NECESSARY AT POINTS WHERE PROPOSED PAVEMENT, CURB
AND SIDEWALKS MEET EXISTING PAVEMENT, CURB AND SIDEWALKS.  REVIEW ANY REQUIRED
CHANGES WITH ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF WORK.

9. ELECTRICAL CIRCUITRY TO SITE LIGHTING AND MONUMENT SIGN SHOWN ON ARCHITECTURAL
PLANS.

10. FOR REQUIRED PAVEMENT REMOVAL ADJACENT TO THE CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL WITHIN
RIGHT OF WAY, A FULL DEPTH SAWCUT SHALL BE UTILIZED AND SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 2' IN
WIDTH.

FOR ALL PAVEMENT PATCHING WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY THE BACKFILL MATERIAL USED SHALL BE
CONTROLLED LOW STRENGTH MATERIAL UP TO THE BOTTOM OF THE PAVEMENT. THE THICKNESS
OF THE HMA PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF THE SAME THICKNESS AS THE
EXISTING PAVEMENT STRUCTURE. THE MIXES USED SHALL BE HMA BINDER COURSE TO WISDOT
STANDARDS

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARATION, COORDINATION AND OBTAINING
APPROVAL OF A TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN IF CLOSURES OF LANES EXCEED THE THE CRITERIA
ESTABLISHED IN THE BDE MANUAL.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE

PROPOSED FENCE (ORNAMENTAL/WOODEN)

PROPOSED FENCE (CHAIN LINK)

LIGHT POLE AND FIXTURE

12

PROPOSED ADA PARKING SPACE

NUMBER OF PROPOSED PARKING SPACES IN A ROW

PROPOSED PARKING STALLS

PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED TURF AREA

LILLEHAMMER LN

B
U

S
 18/151 (S

PR
IN

G
D

A
LE S

T)

35.33' 12' 26' 26' 26' 26' 26' 12'

20
' (

TY
P.

)
33

'
6'

12
'

6'
33

.8
3'

5.
96

'
42

.9
6'

34
'

28
.2

3'
25

.8
3'

15
.7

5'

8' 8'
10'

(TYP.)

30.83'20' (TYP.)7'14'6'100.5'6'13.74'13.74'

20
'

4.33'5.
64

'

5'

5'
12

'
9'

(T
YP

.)

10
'

43.18'
6' 50.56'

10'
(TYP.)

20' 59.05'

11.22'

28
'

33
.8

3'
25

.5
9'

24'

21
.9

7'

5.
9'

R10'
R15'

R10'
R5'

R3' R3'R5'
R10'

R3' R3'

R40'

R40'

R40'

R40'R20'

R19.2'

R10'

R1' (TYP.)

R1' (TYP.)

R3'R3'

58
.9

' 17.2'

EMERGENCY FUEL
SHUT-OFF (SEE DETAIL
6, SHEET C-601)

CASEY'S MONUMENT
SIGN (SEE SIGN PACKET)

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT
(SEE DETAIL 2, SHEET C-601)

5'
(TYP.)

TRASH
ENCLOSURE
(RE: ARCH.

PLANS)

THICKENED EDGE
CONCRETE SIDEWALK (SEE
DETAIL 1, SHEET C-601)

ADA PARKING (SEE
DETAIL 11 & 12,
SHEET C-601)

14' X 54' LOADING AREA

AIR COMPRESSOR (SEE
DETAIL 5, SHEET C-601)

10
'

(T
YP

.)

4" YELLOW
STRIPING
AT 45°, 4'
O-C (TYP.)

CASEY'S CURB AND GUTTER - SEE DETIAL 2, SHEET C-601

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

CAR VACUUMS (RE:
ARCH. PLANS)

35
' F

-F

BOLLARDS AT 10' SPACING

SINGLE SOLID
YELLOW LINE,
4" (TYP.)

24
'

33
'

20
'

9.
5'

30
.8

' F
-F10

'

39
.5

' F
-F

7'

PAY STATION (RE:
ARCH. PLANS)

43.8'

4.3'

31.2' F-F

9'
(TYP.)

39
.4

2'

13 3

5

CASEY'S MARKETING COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD

ANKENY, IA 50021
JAMES VILMAIN
(515) XXX-XXXX

BENCHMARK 2
TOP BURY BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
AT NE CORNER OF ACCESS
ROADWAY AND LILLEHAMMER LN

1192.68

1182.53

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION

BENCHMARK 1
X-CUT ON ACCESS ROADWAY CURB,
APPROXIMATELY 282' NORTH AND 15'
WEST OF CL OF LILLEHAMMER LANE

BENCHMARKS

BM #1

BM #2 BM #3

BM #4

BENCHMARK 4
X CUT ON SIDEWALK IN WEST
US-18/151 ROW, APPROXIMATELY 75'
SOUTH OF NE PROPERTY CORNER

1181.37

BENCHMARK 3
TOP BURY BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
AT NW CORNER OF LILLEHAMMER LN
AND SPRINGDALE ST

1187.73

0 20' 30' 40'

HTRON

39.42'

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V



RLAtechnolgy.com
513-57 4-9500

Casey’s
U3 Style Building FOR INFORMATIONAL AND ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY. ALL PRODUCT, SERVICE AND CORPORATE NAMES ARE THE PROPERTY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE OWNERS. THESE IMAGES 

ARE NOT INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING PURPOSES. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DIMINSIONS LISTED ON THE ILLUSTRATIONS PROVIDED



Casey’s
U3 Building          

www.redleonard.com
513-574-9500

FOR INFORMATIONAL AND ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY. ALL PRODUCT, SERVICE AND CORPORATE NAMES ARE THE PROPERTY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE OWNERS. THESE IMAGES 
ARE NOT INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING PURPOSES. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DIMINSIONS LISTED ON THE ILLUSTRATIONS PROVIDED

REAR ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION



Casey’s
U3 Building           

www.redleonard.com
513-574-9500

FOR INFORMATIONAL AND ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY. ALL PRODUCT, SERVICE AND CORPORATE NAMES ARE THE PROPERTY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE OWNERS. THESE IMAGES 
ARE NOT INTENDED FOR ENGINEERING PURPOSES. RED LEONARD ASSOCIATES IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DIMINSIONS LISTED ON THE ILLUSTRATIONS PROVIDED

lEFT ELEVATION                    

RIGHT ELEVATION







FRONT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATION



REAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATION



20'-2" PAD SIZE

RUNNING BOND
PATTERN W/ RAKE
JOINT (ANTIQUE RED
COLOR)

SOLDIER COURSE, TYP.
(ANTIQUE RED COLOR)

CONCRETE PAD

RUNNING BOND PATTERN
W/ RAKE JOINT (ANTIQUE
RED COLOR)

6" FRONT GATE POST
EMBEDDED IN CONC.

BOLT TYPE LATCH

20'-2" PAD SIZE

SOLDIER COURSE, TYP.
(ANTIQUE RED COLOR)

1x CEDAR DOG-EARED
WOOD SCREENING
ATTACHED TO METAL
FRAME

28'-0" PAD SIZE

CONCRETE PAD

HINGE TYP.

NOTE:
ALL DOMES ON FENCE POSTS
ARE TO BE FASTENED SO THAT
THEY CAN NOT BE REMOVED.

CONC.  PAD

CONC.  PAD

CONC. PAD

SERV.
GATE

7/AL-401

7/AL-401

RUNNING BOND
PATTERN W/ RAKE
JOINT (ANTIQUE RED
COLOR)

SOLDIER COURSE, TYP.
(ANTIQUE RED COLOR)

CONCRETE PAD

AND NUTS (HDG)
CARRIAGE BOLTS

TOP RAIL TYP.

6'-0" GATE6'-0"GATE6'-0" GATE

1x CEDAR DOG-EARED
WOOD SCREENING
ATTACHED TO STEEL
FRAME

28'-0" PAD SIZE

CONC.  PADCONC.  PAD

7/AL-401 7/AL-401

6" FRONT GATE POST TO BE
EMBEDDED IN CONC. ONLY

8'
-6

"

8 YARD
DUMPSTER

65"W x 142"D x
48"H

8 YARD
DUMPSTER

65"W x 142"D x
48"H

7'-10"1'-0"

1'
-0

"

19'-1"

20'-2"  PAD SIZE

2'-0"

26
'-8

"

4"
6'

-8
"

6'
-8

"
4"

INSTALL GATE HOLD OPENER
LATCH WITH CLAMPS. LATCH
& CLAMPS SUPPLIED BY
OWNER. (SEE DETAIL 6)

INSTALL GATE HOLD OPENER
LATCH WITH CLAMPS. LATCH
& CLAMPS SUPPLIED BY
OWNER. (SEE DETAIL 6)

6" BOLLARD TYP.

1'
-0

"

1'-0"

14'-2"

18'-10"

20'-2" PAD SIZE

7'-10"

4' WOOD SERV. GATE
(VERIFY LEFT OR RIGHT SIDE)

7'
-0

"
13

'-4
"

7'
-0

"

LOCATE TANK STICK IN 1 12"X 193" PVC
PIPE,WITH GLUED CAP ON END. ANCHOR
SUPPORT BRACKETS 4'-0" O.C.

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

6'
-8

"
6'

-8
"

6'-0"

2'-0"

INSTALL GATE HOLD OPENER
LATCH WITH CLAMPS ON
EACH SIDE. LATCH & CLAMPS
SUPPLIED BY OWNER. (SEE
DETAIL 6)

TYP.

13'-9"

6" FRONT GATE POST TO BE
EMBEDDED IN CONCRETE -
SPOT WELD HINGE TO POST TYP.

2/AL-401

4/AL-401

3/
AL

-4
01

5/
AL

-4
01

28
'-0

" P
AD

 S
IZ

E

4" BLOCK
TYP.

4" BLOCK
TYP.

4" BLOCK
TYP.

REDSTONE
BRICK TYP.

REDSTONE
BRICK TYP.

6" BOLLARD TYP.
NO COVER

6" BOLLARD TYP.
NO COVER

6" BOLLARD TYP.
NO COVER

6" BOLLARD TYP.
NO COVER

5'
-1

"

6'-5"

6'-0" GATE

6'
-0

" T
O

P 
O

F 
PA

D

9'
-0

"

TYP.
8/AL-401

TY
P.

INSTALL GATE CANE BOLT (DROP
DOWN ANCHOR) SUPPLIED BY OWNER.
FOR CLOSED POSITION ONLY.

13
'-4

"
13

'-4
"

INDIANA LIMESTONE
CAP. 1" OVERHANG AND
3/8" JOINTS. TYP ALL
WALLS.

DROP BOLT CATCH,
BOLTED TO CONCRETE

INDIANA LIMESTONE
CAP. 1" OVERHANG AND
3/8" JOINTS. TYP ALL
WALLS.

INDIANA LIMESTONE
CAP. 1" OVERHANG AND
3/8" JOINTS. TYP ALL
WALLS.

INDIANA LIMESTONE
CAP. 1" OVERHANG AND
3/8" JOINTS. TYP ALL
WALLS.

INSTALL GATE LATCH (COMMERCIAL)
SUPPLIED BY CASEY'S

FITS 1 5/8" OR 2" FRAME ADJUSTS FOR
2" - 3" GAP NO. 4000

TRASH CONTAINER
GATE HOLD OPEN GRADE

CONC. FILLED

FIELD PAINT PRIMER

PLASTIC COVER
(BROWN)

6" DIA. STEEL BOLLARD

2'
-5

"

5'
-3

"

6/AL-401

Ø6"

0'-0"
FINISH GRADE

(-)4'-0"
BELOW FINISH GRADE

1'-8"

1'
-0

"

5" 10"

4" BLOCK WALL

6" NON-REINFORCED
POURED CONCRETE

#4 CONT (QTY. 4)

#5 CONT (QTY. 3)

#4 @ 24" O.C.

BRICK VENEER

5"

SPREAD FOOTING

HORIZONTAL REINFORCEMENT

1" AIR GAP REQUIRED

COTTON CORD WEEP @ 24 O.C.

VERTICAL REINFORCEMENT

General Notes
1. RELATED SHEETS:  FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NOT

DIRECTLY REFERENCED, SEE THE FOLLOWING SHEETS:

G-001 FOR GENERAL PROJECT NOTES
AL101 FOR GENERAL SITE PLAN

1) ALL DOMES ON FENCE POSTS ARE TO BE FASTENED SO
THAT THEY CAN NOT BE REMOVED.

2) VERIFY SCREENING WITH LOCAL AUTHORITY.

3) CONTRACTOR TO PRIME ALL 6" BOLLARDS PRIOR TO
FINISHED PAINT COAT.

4) DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE WALLS WILL BE 4" BLOCK
PURCHASED BY CONTRACTOR

Construction Notes

One Convenience Blvd., P.O. Box 3001, Ankeny, Ia. 50021 515-965-6100
CASEY'S CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

PROJECT: DRAWING INFORMATION:PUBLISHED:

REVISED ON:

DRAWING INFORMATION:

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
DRAWN BY: CHECKED BY:

B.RAHN

01/14/20

2020 Standard Site Details 1 03/20/20

AL-401

DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

Brick Enclosure w/Wood Gates

1 Dumpster Plan
1/4" = 1'-0"2 Dumpster Enclosure - Elevation

1/4" = 1'-0"

3 Dumpster Enclosure - Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"

4 Dumpster Enclosure - Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"

5 Dumpster Enclosure - Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"

8 Bollard Detail
No Scale7 Commercial Double Gate Latch Detail

No Scale6 Gate Open Holder
No Scale

9 Spread Footing Detail
No Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L





®

®

®®

®

SOUTH ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION WEST ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

®

DRAWN BY:
J. CLARK

MT. HOREB, WI

CANOPY OPTION
DATE:

04-21-20



PROPOSED "U3"
CASEY'S BUILDING

39'-5" x 100'-6"

PROPOSED SINGLE
CARWASH BUILDING

28'-3" x 50'-7"

ENTRANCE

EXIT

PR
O

PO
SED

28'x20' BR
IC

K
D

U
M

PSTER
R

EC
YC

LE AR
EA

M

CASEY'S 4
PRODUCT

MONUMENT SIGN

0 20' 30' 40'

HTRON

LILLEHAMMER LANE

S
PR

IN
G

D
A
LE S

R
EET (B

U
S
-18)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V



LILLEHAMMER LN

PROPOSED "U3"
CASEY'S BUILDING

39'-5" x 100'-6"

PROPOSED SINGLE
CARWASH BUILDING

28'-3" x 50'-7"

ENTRANCE

EXIT

10' PAVEM
ENT AND BUILDING

 SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

10' PAVEM
ENT AND

BUILDING  SETBACK

25' BUILDING SETBACK

10' PAVEMENT SETBACK

10' PAVEMENT SETBACK

PR
O

PO
SED

28'x20' BR
IC

K
D

U
M

PSTER
R

EC
YC

LE AR
EA

M

CLIENT REVIEW

C-101
LND

    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334

5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303

CHECKED BY:DRAWN BY:

PROJECT LOCATION & OWNER: FOR CONSTRUCTION:

REVISIONS:

KG
PM:

RCS

LAYOUT PLAN
NW CORNER OF

LILLEHAMMER LN AND
SPRINGDALE ST

MOUNT HOREB, WI 53572

CASEY'S GENERAL STORE - MOUNT HOREB, WI

----
----
----
----
----

----
ISSUED FOR: 03/20/2020

----
----
----
----
----
----
----

----
----
----
----
----
----
---- ----

19136

7.
8.

6.
5.
4.
3.
2.
1.

6.
5.
4.
3.
2.
1.

PARKING TABLE
NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS REQUIRED 14 (1 - A.D.A.)

NUMBER OF PARKING STALLS PROPOSED 14 (1 - A.D.A.)

SITE AREA TABLE
IMPERVIOUS AREA 47,101 (1.08 AC)

TOTAL SITE AREA 69,159 SF (1.59 AC)

% IMPERVIOUS AREA 68.1%

LAYOUT NOTES
1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE ELEVATIONS OF THE BENCHMARKS PRIOR TO

COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO FIELD VERIFY LOCATION AND ELEVATION
OF EXISTING PIPE INVERTS, FLOOR ELEVATIONS, CURB OR PAVEMENT WHERE MATCHING INTO
EXISTING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY HORIZONTAL CONTROL BY
REFERENCING SHOWN COORDINATES TO KNOWN PROPERTY LINES.  NOTIFY ENGINEER OF
DISCREPANCIES IN EITHER VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL CONTROL PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH
WORK.

2. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS.

3. DIMENSIONS THAT LOCATE THE BUILDING ARE MEASURED TO THE OUTSIDE FACE OF THE
BUILDING.

4. SIGN CONSTRUCTION AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF
THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, CURRENT EDITION.

5. COORDINATE WORK WITHIN EACH ROW WITH THE VILLAGE OF MOUNT HOREB, WI. TRAFFIC
CONTROL SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE STANDARDS FOR WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W.

6. ALL RADII ARE DIMENSIONED TO THE BACK OF CURB.

7. ALL CURB AND GUTTER IS INTEGRAL TO PAVEMENT UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  REFER TO THE
DETAIL SHEETS FOR CURB DETAILS.

8. SOME FIELD ADJUSTMENTS MAY BE NECESSARY AT POINTS WHERE PROPOSED PAVEMENT, CURB
AND SIDEWALKS MEET EXISTING PAVEMENT, CURB AND SIDEWALKS.  REVIEW ANY REQUIRED
CHANGES WITH ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF WORK.

9. ELECTRICAL CIRCUITRY TO SITE LIGHTING AND MONUMENT SIGN SHOWN ON ARCHITECTURAL
PLANS.

10. FOR REQUIRED PAVEMENT REMOVAL ADJACENT TO THE CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL WITHIN
RIGHT OF WAY, A FULL DEPTH SAWCUT SHALL BE UTILIZED AND SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 2' IN
WIDTH.

FOR ALL PAVEMENT PATCHING WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY THE BACKFILL MATERIAL USED SHALL BE
CONTROLLED LOW STRENGTH MATERIAL UP TO THE BOTTOM OF THE PAVEMENT. THE THICKNESS
OF THE HMA PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF THE SAME THICKNESS AS THE
EXISTING PAVEMENT STRUCTURE. THE MIXES USED SHALL BE HMA BINDER COURSE TO WISDOT
STANDARDS

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARATION, COORDINATION AND OBTAINING
APPROVAL OF A TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN IF CLOSURES OF LANES EXCEED THE THE CRITERIA
ESTABLISHED IN THE BDE MANUAL.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING EASEMENT LINE

EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED EASEMENT LINE

PROPOSED FENCE (ORNAMENTAL/WOODEN)

PROPOSED FENCE (CHAIN LINK)

LIGHT POLE AND FIXTURE

12

PROPOSED ADA PARKING SPACE

NUMBER OF PROPOSED PARKING SPACES IN A ROW

PROPOSED PARKING STALLS

PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PROPOSED STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

PROPOSED TURF AREA

B
U

S
 18/151 (S

PR
IN

G
D

A
LE S

T)

CASEY'S MARKETING COMPANY
ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD

ANKENY, IA 50021
JAMES VILMAIN
(515) 445-6402

BENCHMARK 2
TOP BURY BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
AT NE CORNER OF ACCESS
ROADWAY AND LILLEHAMMER LN

1192.68

1182.53

ELEVATION (USGS)DESCRIPTION

BENCHMARK 1
X-CUT ON ACCESS ROADWAY CURB,
APPROXIMATELY 282' NORTH AND 15'
WEST OF CL OF LILLEHAMMER LANE

BENCHMARKS

BENCHMARK 4
X CUT ON SIDEWALK IN WEST
US-18/151 ROW, APPROXIMATELY 75'
SOUTH OF NE PROPERTY CORNER

1181.37

BENCHMARK 3
TOP BURY BOLT ON FIRE HYDRANT
AT NW CORNER OF LILLEHAMMER LN
AND SPRINGDALE ST

1187.73

0 20' 30' 40'

HTRON

REPLACE CONCRETE SIDEWALK AS NEEDED

LILLEHAMMER LN

34.5' 12' 26' 26' 26' 26' 26' 12'

20
' (

TY
P.

)
33

'
6'

12
'

6'
33

'
5.

96
'

42
.9

6'
34

'
28

.2
3'

26
'

15
.5

8'

8' 8'
10'

(TYP.)

30'14'6'100.5'6' 13.66'

5'

10
'

40.68'
6' 50.56'

10'
(TYP.)

20' 61.55'

11.22'

28
'

33
'

26
.4

2' 24'

21
.9

7'

5.
9'

57
.5

'

EMERGENCY FUEL
SHUT-OFF (SEE DETAIL
6, SHEET C-601)

CASEY'S MONUMENT
SIGN (SEE SIGN PACKET)

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT
(SEE DETAIL 2, SHEET C-601)

5'
(TYP.)

TRASH
ENCLOSURE
(RE: ARCH.

PLANS)

THICKENED EDGE
CONCRETE SIDEWALK (SEE
DETAIL 1, SHEET C-601)

ADA PARKING (SEE
DETAIL 11 & 12,
SHEET C-601)

14' X 54' LOADING AREA

AIR COMPRESSOR
(SEE DETAIL 5,
SHEET C-601)

10
'

(T
YP

.)

4" YELLOW
STRIPING
AT 45°, 4'
O-C (TYP.)

CASEY'S CURB AND GUTTER - SEE DETIAL 2, SHEET C-601

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

CAR VACUUMS (RE:
ARCH. PLANS)

BOLLARDS AT 10' SPACING

SINGLE SOLID
YELLOW LINE,
4" (TYP.)

24
'

33
'

20
'

9.
5'

10
'

7'

PAY STATION (RE:
ARCH. PLANS)

37'

13.7'

26.1'

39
.4

2'

12 2

BM #1

BM #2
BM #3

BM #4

37.76'

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

REPLACE CONCRETE SIDEWALK AS NEEDED

5'

10
'

35
' F

-F

R1'

R1'

R20'

R20'

R1'

R1'

R15'

R20'

R3'

R10' R5'

R20'

R15'

R3' R3'

R10'

R15'

35
' F

-F

9'
(TYP.)

1.
5'

4.
5'

2'

2'

5" CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

5'

21'

5'

R20'
R3'

R5'

R70'

30.1'

20'

FOUNDATION
PLANTINGS (TYP.)

5'

ADD LIFT TO EXISTING ASPHALT PAVEMENT

9'
(TYP.)

13
.7

5'

7' 9'

BICYCLE
PARKING AREA

(MIN. 2 SPACES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
V



 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: Village of Mount Horeb Plan Commission 

From: Village Planner Michael A. Slavney, FAICP 

Date: April 22, 2020 

Re: Village Planner’s Preliminary Site Plan and Design Review Comments for Proposed Casey’s 
Convenience Store, Gas Station, and Car Wash for April Plan Commission 

Introduction 

Casey’s is proposing a new store located at the west corner of Springdale Street and Lillehammer Lane – 
across from Symdon Chevrolet. The site is proposed for a convenience store, gas pumps, and one bay car 
wash. The site is zoned Planned Business (PB), which allows the convenience store as a permitted by right 
Indoor Sales and Service land use; the gas pumps and car wash as In-Vehicle Sales and Service land uses 
requiring a conditional use permit; and a conditional use permit for Outdoor Display of limited areas and 
items on the store apron and gas pump islands. 

Casey’s and its agents, Design Resources Inc., have been working closely with Village Staff to design and 
refine a submittal to meet all zoning requirements, including zoning district, land use, and design review 
requirements. Village Staff believes the draft submittal is now compliant with most objective zoning 
requirements, but will benefit from early Plan Commission review and discussion of the subjective 
components of the project. The intent of this memo is to discuss all zoning requirements for this project, 
identify needs for changes to meet remaining objective issues, and provide background for the review and 
discussion of subjective requirements – mostly under the Village Design Review process. 

This review is based on the updated plan set dated April 1, 2020; and the updated building elevations 
dated April 16, 2020. These materials are presented in the April Plan Commission packet. At minimum, the 
yellow highlighted items should be discussed at the April Plan Commission meeting. 
 

Zoning District, Land Use, and Site Layout Requirements 

Subject Property has Planned Business (PB) Zoning: 

• Three land uses categories are proposed for this project: 

o Indoor Sales and Service – permitted by right 

o In-Vehicle Sales or Service – requires a conditional use permit 

o Outdoor Display (not depicted, but typical) – requires a conditional use permit. Specific 
locations and materials for outdoor display will need to be identified in the submittal text 
and on the Site Plan. 



April 20, 2020  Page 2 of 10 

• PB Zoning District intensity (coverage) and bulk (setback and height) requirements are all met. 

• Other land use issues: A condition of car wash approval will be for the car wash to recycle water. 

• Site Design: 

o Village Public Works Director and Village Engineer should review and approve the 
proposed location of freestanding sign near corner of Springdale and Lillehammer, 
keeping in mind its maximum permitted height of 12 feet and sight line concerns. Does 
the Plan Commission have any other concerns with the proposed location? 

• Landscaping: All landscaping requirements are met, including requirements for Building 
Foundation, Paved Areas, Street Frontages (3), and General Open Space. Provided landscaping 
points exceed required points by a modest percentage. 

• Signage: 

o The proposed Free Standing and On-Building Signs comply with all requirements. The 
wall area behind the main on-building signs must remain in a neutral color and material 
used elsewhere on the building and not associated with the specific business. 

o Directional signs for the car wash traffic flow are in-compliance with size, number, and 
location requirements. 

o Pump island signage is limited to a maximum of one square foot. 

o Canopy signage is limited to 8-inch tall letters and no portion of the sign may extend 
above or below the top and bottom planes of the canopy. Reduce the size and height of 
the Casey’s logo to comply. Remove the proposed color stripe – which counts as sign 
area. 

 

Design Review Requirements per Section 17-14: 

Design Review by the Plan Commission is required under Section 17.14 of the Zoning Ordinance. Design 
Review is required for all development projects in the Village, except residential development with three 
or fewer dwelling units. The Design Review requirements in Section 17.14(4)(b) identify 27 Design 
Directives. The Plan Commission has the ability to waive any Design Directive or add additional design 
requirements upon a finding that the additional design requirement would improve the project. 

Generally, this project has been refined by working with Village Staff to comply with most Design Review 
requirements. I recommend the Plan Commission discuss the items highlighted in yellow, which require 
subjective Plan Commission review and approval, or require an explicit waiver by the Plan Commission.  

1. Site Grading: 

a. The grading plan shall preserve existing grades to the greatest extent possible, 
particularly at the perimeter of the site. 

• This will be reviewed in detail by Village Staff. The Grading Plan appears to address 
the elevation change on the property in an appropriate manner. 

b. In no instance shall proposed grading create transitions to adjoining properties or 
rights-of-way that are unsafe, unstable or create drainage problems. 

• Same comment as 1.a., above. 

c. Site grading shall also preserve or create an attractive site appearance in conjunction 
with the proposed development. 

• Same comment as 1.a., above. 



April 20, 2020  Page 3 of 10 

2. Existing Site Vegetation and Other Natural Features: 

a. The grading and development plans shall preserve, protect, and maintain important 
existing site vegetation as identified by the Plan Commission. Examples include 
hedgerows, groves and individual specimen trees. 

• There is no significant existing vegetation on the site. 

b. Topsoil used at the development site should be from on site, to the extent possible, 
particularly in areas under the drip line of preserved vegetation. 

• This will be reviewed in detail by Village Staff. The Site Plan is designed to meet 
enable the Grading Plan to meet this requirement. 

3. Site Layout Relation to Abutting Streets: 

a. In general, the layout of buildings, structures, pavement, parking and landscaping shall 
be compatible with the general pattern for similar land uses in the vicinity, as 
determined by the Plan Commission. 

• This is a challenging site, with two public street frontages, the site approach from a 
private drive, and the buildings highly visible when approaching on Springdale Street 
from the west. The development plan proposes the building facing east – toward US 
151 and Lillehammer Lane, which results in the building side facing Springdale Street 
and the building rear facing west down the length of Springdale Street. The building 
elevations and landscaping plan have been upgraded to address this challenge. The 
Plan Commission should discuss whether the proposed building orientation and 
appearance results in an acceptable alternative to having the building face Springdale 
Street – which results in the sides facing east to Lillehammer and USH 151 and to 
west, with the rear facing the private drive serving the site entrance and exit. 

b. The general site layout shall result in an attractive appearance to all abutting streets, as 
determined by the Plan Commission. 

• Same as 3.a., above. 

4. Building Setbacks: 

a. Building setbacks shall comply with the requirements of the zoning district, and with 
the additional requirements listed below in subparagraphs 4.b. and 4.c. 

• This requirement is met on all sides of the store, car wash, and canopy. 

b. Within the downtown area, and particularly along Main Street and the commercially 
developed portions of intersecting streets, the entire street side of buildings shall be 
located at or within 3 feet of all abutting street rights-of-way, unless an exception is 
granted through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is not applicable, as the subject property is not located in the 
specified area. 

c. Within the CTH ID corridor between STH 78 and USH 151, the entire street side of 
buildings shall be located at or within 30 feet of all abutting street rights-of-way, unless 
an exception is granted through the conditional use process. Parking shall not be 
permitted in this area. Drives for one-way circulation and/or emergency vehicle access 
may be permitted through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is met on all sides of the store, car wash, and canopy. 



April 20, 2020  Page 4 of 10 

5. Building Height: 

a. Building heights shall comply with the requirements of the zoning district, and with the 
additional requirements listed below in subparagraphs 5.b. and 5.c. 

• This requirement is met. 

b. Within the downtown area, and particularly along Main Street and the commercially 
developed portions of intersecting streets, building heights shall be a minimum of 20 
feet and shall be a minimum of 2 stories, unless an exception is granted through the 
conditional use process. 

• This requirement is not applicable, as the subject property is not located in the 
specified area. 

c. Within the CTH ID corridor between STH 78 and USH 151, building heights shall 
provide a functional or decorative building tower or related architectural feature that 
exceeds the height of the majority of the building facade by at least 7 feet, unless an 
exception is granted through the conditional use process. Roofs, and roof 
appurtenances such as cupolas, shall not count toward this requirement. 

• This requirement appears to be met. Is the Plan Commission supportive of this 
approach to the tower element requirement?  

6. Building Mass: 

a. Buildings over 5,000 square feet of gross floor area shall be subject to the requirements 
for large developments. 

• The project is below 5,000 square feet and is not subject to those requirements. 

7. Building Facades: 

a. Long building facades shall be visually broken up and variegated with staggers and 
offsets as determined appropriate by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met on the front. Does the Plan Commission think this 
requirement is met on the back (west facing) façade?  

b. All building facades facing streets, drives or parking areas shall provide regularly 
spaced openings for windows and doors, and regularly spaced decorative elements 
such as piers and columns. The size and spacing of these features shall be compatible 
with nearby structures that meet this requirement, as determined by the Plan 
Commission. 

• I think this requirement is met on the front. Does the Plan Commission think this 
requirement is met on the north-facing façade facing Springdale Street?  

c. All building facades facing streets, drives or parking areas shall provide a pattern of 
upper story openings that is compatible with the pattern established by the ground 
floor, as determined by the Plan Commission. 

• Not applicable for this one-story building. This requirement is met. 
 

d. Within the downtown zoning district, and particularly along Main Street and the 
commercially developed portions of intersecting streets, building facades shall employ 
traditional storefront design by providing pilasters, transom windows, cornices, lintels 



April 20, 2020  Page 5 of 10 

and related decorative details to highlight transitions between the ground floor and 
upper stories and between upper stories and the parapet. 

• This requirement is not applicable, as the subject property is not located in the 
specified area. 

8. Exterior Building Materials: 

a. Exterior materials for multi-family, office, or commercial buildings may not include 
metal wall panels, concrete panels, plain concrete block, asphalt, or spandrel window 
panels, unless an exception is granted through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is met with wall materials. However, “faux windows” (spandrel 
window panels) are proposed on the building. Does the Plan Commission want to 
consider granting an exception to this prohibition?  

b. Hard and durable materials including decorative block, brick or stone, shall be required 
on all exterior portions of the structure within 40 inches of the adjacent grade. 

• This requirement is met on all sides of the building. 

9. Exterior Building Colors: 

a. Exterior colors of all buildings, structures, appurtenances and paving shall be 
compatible and harmonious with those of existing buildings in the immediate area 
which conform to these design requirements, as determined by the Plan Commission. 

i. Within the downtown area, the Victorian color palette shall be used, or other 
colors must be approved by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is not applicable, as the subject property is not located in the 
specified area. 

ii. Throughout the rest of the Village, primary colors including red, blue, green, 
yellow, black, and fluorescent colors shall not be permitted. Where an integral 
part of site design, muted versions of these colors may be used, as approved by 
the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met on all portions of the building using calm, neutral 
colors – except for the proposed stripe on the canopy. Does the Plan 
Commission wish to consider an exception to this requirement for the canopy 
stripe? 

iii. High gloss paints and other exterior finishes are not permitted. 

• This requirement is met on all portions of the building. 

iv. Color patterns shall be used consistently throughout the property, as determined 
by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met on all portions of the building. 

10. Exterior Doors: 

a. All exterior doors visible from streets, drives or parking areas shall provide decorative 
design elements. 

• This requirement is not met on the man doors on the north and west facades, which 
are visible from Springdale Street. Does the Plan Commission wish to consider an 
exception for this prohibition?  



April 20, 2020  Page 6 of 10 

11. Windows: 

a. Spandrel panels, mirrored glass or heavily-tinted windows are not permitted. Where 
screening is desired, vertical or horizontal strip blinds may be used. 

• As discussed above, “faux windows” (spandrel window panels) are proposed on the 
building. Does the Plan Commission want to consider granting an exception to this 
prohibition? 

b. Windows may not be obscured by paper or other attached materials on more than 5% 
of any individual window panel. 

• This requirement is met on all portions of the building. Continual compliance is 
required after building occupancy. 

12. Roofs: 

a. Roof forms and materials shall be compatible and harmonious with those of existing 
buildings in the immediate area which conform to these design requirements, as 
determined by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement may not be met on the highly visible rear west façade of the 
building. The proposed rear roof is a substantial upgrade from the originally 
proposed treatment. Does the Plan Commission feel this requirement is met by the 
proposal; or alternatively, does the Plan Commission wish to consider an exception 
to allow the proposed approach? 

b. Metal roofs shall not be used for multifamily, office or commercial buildings, unless an 
exception is granted through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. Roof forms shall be designed to accommodate the requirements in subparagraphs 5.c. 
and 7.d., above. 

• This requirement is met. 

d. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall not exceed the elevation of the lowest point of 
the surrounding building parapet or roof. 

• This requirement is not met on the rear side of the roof. However, the roof is 
proposed to use screening panels to conceal views of the rooftop mechanicals. Does 
the Plan Commission wish to consider an exception to allow the proposed panels? 

13. Exterior Building Appurtenances: 

a. Building facades shall be uncluttered by the minimal use and careful placement of 
brackets, wiring, meter boxes, antennae, gutters, downspouts and other appurtenances. 
Where necessary, such features shall be colored to blend in, rather than contrast, with 
the immediately adjacent building exterior. 

• I believe this requirement is met. Does the Plan Commission concur, particularly in 
the treatment of the west façade of the building? 

14. Awnings: 

a. Awnings, where approved by the Plan Commission, shall complement the character of 
the building. 

• This is an option often recommended for buildings with a residential form (gable 
roofs, horizontal siding). I believe this requirement is met. 



April 20, 2020  Page 7 of 10 

b. Soft, weather-treated canvas or vinyl materials which allow for flexible or fixed 
installation may be used. Metal canopies are prohibited. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. Backlighting is prohibited. 

• This requirement is met. 

 

15. Trash Containment Structures: 

a. Trash containment structures shall be designed to fully conceal trash storage. 

• This requirement is met. 

b. Trash containment structures shall be constructed in the same materials and colors as 
the ground floor of the principal building. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. Wood or synthetic wood gates shall be used and shall be arranged in a pattern to provide 
complete opacity. Metal panel gates and metal fence gates with strips are prohibited. 

• This requirement is met. 

16. Freestanding Canopy Structures: 

a. Freestanding canopy structures, such as those providing shelter at a gas station or 
drive-up banking station, shall be designed to complement the design of the principal 
building, as determined by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is not met. The drive-up structure does not match the design, 
materials and colors of the primary building. Does the Plan Commission wish to 
grant an exception for this requirement? 

b. Canopy roofs shall employ the same pitch, materials and colors as the roof of the 
principal building, unless an exception is granted through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is not met. Does the Plan Commission wish to grant an exception 
for this requirement? 

c. Canopy supports shall be decorative in nature and shall employ the same materials and 
colors as the principal building. Exposed nondecorative supporting poles are not 
permitted. 

• This requirement is not met for the full height of the canopy supports. Does the Plan 
Commission wish to grant an exception for this requirement? 

17. Other Structures: 

a. Outbuildings shall employ the same high-quality exterior building materials as used on 
the principal building. 

• This requirement is met by the car wash building. 

b. Walls and fences shall employ high-quality materials such as metal pickets, stone, 
decorative block or brick which complement the principal building, as determined by 
the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met by the car wash building. 

 



April 20, 2020  Page 8 of 10 

18. Exterior Lighting: 

a. All exterior lighting shall use decorative fixtures, as approved by the Plan Commission. 
Such fixtures shall be consistent in design theme throughout the site. 

• This requirement is met. 

b. All exterior light bulbs shall not be visible from beyond any property line. Directional 
or cutoff fixtures shall be used to meet this requirement. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. Lighting at the property lines shall not exceed 0.5 footcandles over ambient conditions. 

• This requirement is met. 

d. Maximum lighting shall not exceed 10.0 footcandles on the site, except in areas serving 
in-vehicle uses such as drive-up windows and fueling areas. In such locations, 
maximum lighting shall not exceed 25.0 footcandles. 

• This requirement is met. 

e. Freestanding light fixtures shall not exceed a total height of 20 feet. 

• This requirement is met. 

19. Exterior Signage: 

a. Exterior signage shall complement the design of the overall site, as determined by the 
Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met. 

b. Freestanding sign supports shall be decorative in nature and shall employ the same 
materials and colors as the principal building. Exposed nondecorative supporting poles 
are not permitted. 

• This requirement is met. 

20. Outdoor Display or Storage: 

a. All outdoor display and/or storage areas must be clearly depicted and labeled on an 
approved site plan. Said label shall specify the general types of materials to be displayed 
or stored, including: retail or rental display; retail or rental vehicle display; long-term 
business vehicle storage; equipment storage; refuse storage; scrap equipment or vehicle 
storage. 

• Unknown at this time, no outdoor display depicted. 

b. Outdoor storage areas shall be adequately screened from view from adjacent properties 
and streets, drives and parking areas, as determined by the Plan Commission. 

• Unknown at this time, no outdoor display depicted. 

21. Pavement Materials: 

a. All traffic circulation, parking and pedestrian areas shall be provided with a hard, 
durable surface such as concrete, asphalt, pavement blocks or bricks. Gravel is not 
acceptable. 

• This requirement is met throughout the site. 

b. Durable, porous pavement techniques are encouraged, and the overall coverage of 
pavement on all sites should be minimized so as to reduce stormwater runoff. 



April 20, 2020  Page 9 of 10 

• Please consider this for employee walkways. 

22. Pedestrian Facilities: 

a. Public sidewalks or multipurpose paths shall be required along all street frontages, per 
Village standards. 

• This requirement is met. 

b. Paved pedestrian connections are required between all street frontage pedestrian 
facilities and public doorways. Said connections shall be a minimum of 5 feet wide. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. Where pedestrian connections cross vehicle circulation areas, a crosswalk clearly 
delineated by color and/or texture is required. 

• This requirement is met. 

23. Traffic Circulation: 

a. Traffic circulation patterns shall be safe and understandable by vehicle operators, as 
determined by the Plan Commission. 

• This requirement is met, including the minimum 25-foot deep entry before 
encountering a vehicle exiting a parking space. 

b. Traffic patterns which are determined as too complicated by the Plan Commission 
shall be prohibited. Complications may be identified due to steep grades, inadequate 
throat depths, offset intersections, too many intersections within a particular area, 
dangerous and conflicting traffic movements, movements compromised by limited 
visibility, or restricted turning radii for the types of vehicles likely present on the site. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. No traffic circulation shall be permitted within 10 feet of a street or drive right-of-way 
or easement, nor within 5 feet of any other property line, except within the downtown 
area, or as approved as through the conditional use process. 

• This requirement is met. 

d. Within the CTH ID corridor between STH 78 and USH 151, refer to subparagraph 
4.c. above regarding limitations on drives located adjacent to street rights-of-way. 

• This standard is not met due to the need to access the car wash, and to route 
fuel delivery vehicles around the site. Does the Plan Commission wish to 
consider an exception for this requirement? 

24. Parking: 

a. All parking areas located within required principal building setback areas shall be 
visually screened from streets by a continuous landscaped hedge, fence, wall or berm 
with a minimum height of 40 inches over the elevation of the adjacent portion of the 
parking lot at time of installation. Gaps in this hedge are permitted for pavement 
approved as part of the site design. 

• This requirement is met. 
  



April 20, 2020  Page 10 of 10 

b. Within the downtown area, and particularly along Main Street and the commercially 
developed portions of intersecting streets, parking shall not be located along a street 
frontage unless an exception is granted through the conditional use process. 

• This standard is not applicable to the subject property. 

c. Within the CTH ID corridor between STH 78 and USH 151, refer to subparagraph 
4.c. above regarding the prohibition of parking adjacent to street rights-of-way. 

• This requirement is met, there is no parking adjacent to street rights-of-way. 

d. Bicycle parking shall be provided at a rate of one bicycle space for every 10 vehicle 
parking spaces up to a total of 20 bicycle spaces. 

• This requirement is met. 

25. Building Foundation Landscaping: 

a. A minimum 10-foot wide landscaping bed or planter shall be provided along at least 
50% of each wall facing a street, drive or parking area, except within the downtown 
area. 

• This requirement is not quite met on the front façade, where the planter beds 
abut about 46% of the east wall. Given the food prepared and available inside, 
I feel an exception to allow as depicted would be appropriate. Does the Plan 
Commission wish to consider an exception to this requirement? 

b. This bed or planter shall be located adjacent to or within 10 feet of the building 
foundation. 

• This requirement is met. 

c. This bed or planter shall be landscaped appropriately as determined by the Plan 
Commission. 

• Unknown at this time. Will be provided in the public hearing packet. 

26. Street Frontage Landscaping: 

a. A minimum 10-foot wide landscaped area shall be provided adjacent to the frontage of 
all streets and drives, except within the downtown area.  

• This requirement is met. 

b. This area shall be landscaped appropriately as determined by the Plan Commission. At 
minimum, one canopy-type street tree (maple, oak, hickory, ginkgo, honey locust or 
similar species) shall be required for every 50 feet of street or drive frontage, except 
within the downtown area. Said trees shall be a minimum 2-inch to 2.5-inch caliper. 

• Unknown at this time. Will be provided in the public hearing packet. 

27. Parking Lot Landscaping: 

a. Parking lot landscaping shall comply with the requirements of §17.136 

• Unknown at this time. Will be provided in the public hearing packet. 

b. Subsection 24.a., above, shall also apply along street and drive frontages. 

• Unknown at this time. Will be provided in the public hearing packet. 

c. Subsection 24.c., above, shall also apply along CTH ID. 

• Unknown at this time. Will be provided in the public hearing packet. 

https://library.municode.com/wi/mount_horeb/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CO_CH17ZOCORERE98-16_17.136MILAST


Village of Mount Horeb 
Building Inspection Dept. 

 
Building Inspector’s Report 

March 2020 
 

 
Month to Date 
 
1. 18 building permits have been issued for general construction since 

March 1st. 
2. 0 new UDC permits  
 
Year to Date 
 
1. 45 general permits since Jan. 1st 
2. 2 new UDC single family homes since Jan. 1st 
3. 1 new duplex 
        

 
 Large Commercial projects currently active 
 
1. Premier Co-op addition/remodel 
2. 6-unit apartment building on Eastwood Way 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 
 
 
Dave Geraths 
Building Inspector 
 
 


	Casey's Conceptual Plan Comm 042220.pdf
	Casey's Mount Horeb - Revised 4-16-2020
	Car Wash Elevation - Revised
	Canopy - Brick at Column Base
	Site Plan - Mount Horeb 4-1-2020
	Sheets and Views
	Layout


	Dumpster Enclosure - Brick.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	03_AL-401-28' Brick


	Original Casey's submittal.pdf
	Casey's Site Plan 03-16-2020
	Sheets and Views
	Layout


	Mount Horeb, WI - Color Rendering with Canopy
	Mount Horeb, WI - Color Rendering

	Mt. Horeb, WI - Canopy Option.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	6 In-A-Row (HI)






